
Finance & Administration Council 

Committee

City of Jonesboro

Meeting Agenda

900 West Monroe

Jonesboro, AR 72401

Huntington Building4:00 PMTuesday, June 25, 2013

1.  Call To Order

2.  Approval of minutes

MIN-13:043 Minutes for the Finance Committee meeting on May 28, 2013

MinutesAttachments:

MIN-13:049 Minutes for the special called Finance Committee meeting on June 18, 2013

MinutesAttachments:

3.  New Business

Resolutions To Be Introduced

RES-13:087 RESOLUTION BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF JONESBORO, ARKANSAS 

CERTIFYING LOCAL GOVERNMENT ENDORSEMENT OF BUSINESS TO 

PARTICIPATE IN THE TAX BACK PROGRAM (AS AUTHORIZED BY SECTION 

15-4-2706(d) OF THE CONSOLIDATED INCENTIVE ACT OF 2003).

Sponsors: Mayor's Office

4.  Pending Items

5.  Other Business

6.  Public Comments

7.  Adjournment

Page 1 City of Jonesboro Printed on 6/20/2013



300 S. Church Street
Jonesboro, AR 72401City of Jonesboro

Legislation Details (With Text)

File #:  Version: 1MIN-13:043 Name:

Status:Type: Minutes To Be Introduced

File created: In control:5/30/2013 Finance & Administration Council Committee

On agenda: Final action:

Title: Minutes for the Finance Committee meeting on May 28, 2013

Sponsors:

Indexes:

Code sections:

Attachments: Minutes

Action ByDate Action ResultVer.

title
Minutes for the Finance Committee meeting on May 28, 2013



900 West Monroe

Jonesboro, AR 72401City of Jonesboro

Meeting Minutes - Draft

Finance & Administration Council 

Committee

4:30 PM Huntington BuildingTuesday, May 28, 2013

1.      Call To Order

Mayor Perrin was also in attendance.

Ann Williams;John Street and Mikel FearsPresent 3 - 

Darrel Dover and Charles ColemanAbsent 2 - 

2.      Approval of minutes

MIN-13:036 Minutes for the Finance Committee meeting on May 1, 2013

MinutesAttachments:

A motion was made by Councilman John Street, seconded by Councilman 

Mikel Fears, that this matter be Passed . The motion PASSED by a unanimous 

vote

John Street and Mikel FearsAye: 2 - 

Darrel Dover and Charles ColemanAbsent: 2 - 

3.      New Business

Ordinances To Be Introduced

ORD-13:019 AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE 2012 BUDGET ORDINANCE FOR THE CITY 

OF JONESBORO

Sponsors: Finance

Chief Financial Officer Ben Barylske explained the cost for the Police and Fire 

Departments are for the LOPFI Retirement Insurance cost. He added the State of 

Arkansas collects money for this program and then gives the City a credit. He further 

explained the City use to receive the funds and then send the money back to the 

State, but the State decided to keep the funds and give out the credit. 

Discussion was held concerning what the other funds were from. 

Mr. Barylske explained it is the Attorney General’s opinion that the committee can be 

notified of the cleanup ordinance after the fact, but it is the City’s policy to notify the 

committee of the cleanup ordinance before the fact. He added the items listed in this 

ordinance were discussed throughout the year.

Page 1City of Jonesboro

http://jonesboro.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=c04fbddc-79ea-447c-89e4-67da984bd112.pdf


May 28, 2013Finance & Administration Council 

Committee

Meeting Minutes - Draft

A motion was made by Councilman John Street, seconded by Councilman 

Mikel Fears, that this matter be Recommended to Council . The motion 

PASSED by a unanimous vote

John Street and Mikel FearsAye: 2 - 

Darrel Dover and Charles ColemanAbsent: 2 - 

Resolutions To Be Introduced

RES-13:068 A RESOLUTION TO PROVIDE FOR THE EXECUTION AND MAINTENANCE OF A 

LETTER OF CREDIT TO BE ISSUED TO THE ARKANSAS DEPARTMENT OF 

ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY (ADEQ)

Sponsors: Engineering and Finance

Letter of CreditAttachments:

Mr. Barylske stated the City does this every year and will have to continue to do it 

every year until the landfill is permanently closed.

Councilman Street asked if the City has received an update on the landfill. Mayor 

Perrin answered no, but the City monitors the wells and once the level of the wells 

reach the satisfied amount then the City can apply for a permit to close the landfill. 

Councilman Fears asked if the City will ever be out from under the landfill. Mayor 

Perrin answered the City will eventually be able to get away from the landfill, but he 

can’t say when that will be.

A motion was made by Councilman John Street, seconded by Councilman 

Mikel Fears, that this matter be Recommended to Council . The motion 

PASSED by a unanimous vote

John Street and Mikel FearsAye: 2 - 

Darrel Dover and Charles ColemanAbsent: 2 - 

RES-13:073 RESOLUTION BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF JONESBORO, 

ARKANSAS AUTHORIZING THE DESTRUCTION OF MUNICIPAL DOCUMENTS

Sponsors: Finance

Destruction of records 2013Attachments:

Mr. Barylske explained by law the City has to complete an affidavit and show the 

Council what the City wants to destroy. He added the City has a lot of old records 

and didn’t want to move them to the new building. 

Councilman Street asked if the City contacted a shredding company. Mr. Barylske 

answered he contacted two companies and E-911 Director Jeff Presley is working 

with the KFIN radio station, who might do the shredding for free.  He added an 

employee of the City and a council member have to witness the records being 

destroyed. 

Mayor Perrin noted he asked if the City would be allowed to burn the documents in 

the incinerator, but he was told no.  He then asked when the City expects to destroy 

these documents. Mr. Barylske answered as soon as it is passed by Council.

Page 2City of Jonesboro

http://jonesboro.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=3dfbc61c-d9e7-477d-a103-e4f809b87c44.pdf
http://jonesboro.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=9f0bf472-9b37-4b4d-a1cf-802243e98b1e.pdf


May 28, 2013Finance & Administration Council 

Committee

Meeting Minutes - Draft

A motion was made by Councilman John Street, seconded by Councilman 

Mikel Fears, that this matter be Recommended to Council . The motion 

PASSED by a unanimous vote

John Street and Mikel FearsAye: 2 - 

Darrel Dover and Charles ColemanAbsent: 2 - 

RES-13:079 A RESOLUTION TO AMEND THE CITY SALARY & ADMINISTRATION PLAN FOR 

THE PURPOSE OF CREATING A DIGITAL MEDIA SPECIALISTS

Sponsors: Information Systems

Digital Media SpecialistsAttachments:

Councilwoman Williams noted this is replacing Jack Turner who recently quit . 

Mayor Perrin explained the title for this position was changed and the grade has been 

lowered. He added the reason the title was changed is because the person who is 

hired for this position will be primarily responsible for the filming when the City goes 

to an event, but the person will not be doing the interviewing because KAIT will be 

doing the interviewing. He stated the minimum pay is $33,827, but the gentleman 

who is being hired has agreed to be paid $33,500. 

Mr. Barylske explained the IT Department and Payroll Specialist Christy Wall will be 

able to handle some of the other duties. 

Councilman Fears asked if the salary is being lowered. Mayor Perrin answered yes 

because it is a new position and the previous position was graded higher than this 

position.

A motion was made by Councilman Mikel Fears, seconded by Councilman 

John Street, that this matter be Recommended to Council . The motion 

PASSED by a unanimous vote

John Street and Mikel FearsAye: 2 - 

Darrel Dover and Charles ColemanAbsent: 2 - 

4.      Pending Items

5.      Other Business

Mike Camerson to discuss the highway sales tax adopted in November

Mike Cameron explained that he spoke with the MPO about a grant the City had 

asked for from the Highway Department, but the Highway Department was not on 

board to get I-555 finished. 

Discussion was held concerning how much funding the Northwest part of the State 

has received. 

Mr. Cameron explained that on July 1 the ½ cent sales tax will go into effect and 70% 

of the funds will go towards retired bonds that the Highway Commission will sale to 

build highways in the state, but I-555 was not on the list. He added it would only take 

Page 3City of Jonesboro

http://jonesboro.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=3453114d-0d09-4ede-87f7-4605cd61e39c.doc


May 28, 2013Finance & Administration Council 

Committee

Meeting Minutes - Draft

$13.8 million to finish I-555. 

Mr. Cameron recommended the City hire a consultant who can determine what the 

impact will have on Jonesboro by not having an interstate. He added he estimates 

that the City will lose approximately $128 million over the next 10 years. He noted 

former Arkansas State Representative Marion Berry emailed a former mayor and told 

him that $60 million dollars were available for I-555. He added $48 million has already 

been spent on other projects and none of it was spent on I-555. 

Discussion was held concerning a Highway Commissioner. He noted the Highway 

Commission has not released any funds for I-555. 

Councilman Fears asked what the City could do to help get funding for I-555. Mr. 

Cameron answered there is really nothing anyone can do because of Amendment 42. 

He added if a Highway Commissioner does not want I-555 then it will not happen, but 

maybe the next commissioner will. 

Councilman Fears then asked if the City is stuck until the State gets a new 

commissioner. Mayor Perrin answered yes. He added the environmental study has 

been done. He noted the contract between the Highway Department and an 

engineering firm for the design has not been signed, but the minute order has been 

passed. Discussion was then held concerning the Tiger Grant. 

Councilman Fears explained the City is paying the extra sales tax money, but the 

City sees no benefit. Mr. Cameron agreed. 

Councilman Fears then inquired about Highway 226 between Cash and Jonesboro. 

Mayor Perrin answered that road has been fully funded by the Highway Department. 

Mr. Cameron stated that project was not funded by the Highway Department. 

Councilman Moore asked if the Mayor, Council members and other individuals from 

the City talked to the Highway Commission if the City would get somewhere. Mr. 

Cameron answered he does not know, but he will be willing to go. Councilman Moore 

explained the City does not have a financial or engineering problem, but a political 

problem. Mr. Cameron stated he believes the Mayor does not want to be 

confrontational with the Highway Department due to the City having to work with the 

Highway Department on a daily basis. Mayor Perrin added the City is currently 

working on 25 projects with the Highway Department. Mr. Cameron asked who is 

paying for those projects. Mayor Perrin answered the City is paying the majority of 

the funds. Mayor Perrin noted the Highway Department is paying for the milling and 

asphalt on some of the projects and for that reason you have to be careful how you 

deal with them. 

Discussion was held concerning the projects near Pine Bluff. 

Mr. Cameron noted that I-555 could be designated today, but it would put the farmers 

near Payneway at a huge disadvantage and nobody wants to do that.

6.      Public Comments

7.      Adjournment

A motion was made by Councilman John Street, seconded by Councilman 

Mikel Fears,  that this meeting be Adjourned.  The motion CARRIED by a Voice 

Page 4City of Jonesboro



May 28, 2013Finance & Administration Council 

Committee

Meeting Minutes - Draft

Vote.

John Street and Mikel FearsAye: 2 - 

Darrel Dover and Charles ColemanAbsent: 2 - 

Page 5City of Jonesboro



300 S. Church Street
Jonesboro, AR 72401City of Jonesboro

Legislation Details (With Text)

File #:  Version: 1MIN-13:049 Name:

Status:Type: Minutes To Be Introduced

File created: In control:6/19/2013 Finance & Administration Council Committee

On agenda: Final action:

Title: Minutes for the special called Finance Committee meeting on June 18, 2013

Sponsors:

Indexes:

Code sections:

Attachments: Minutes

Action ByDate Action ResultVer.

title
Minutes for the special called Finance Committee meeting on June 18, 2013



900 West Monroe

Jonesboro, AR 72401City of Jonesboro

Meeting Minutes - Draft

Finance & Administration Council 

Committee

4:50 PM Huntington BuildingTuesday, June 18, 2013

Special Called Meeting

1.      Call To Order

Mayor Perrin was also in attendance.

Ann Williams;John Street;Darrel Dover;Mikel Fears and Charles ColemanPresent 5 - 

2.      New Business

Ordinances To Be Introduced

ORD-13:023 AN ORDINANCE TO WAIVE COMPETITIVE BIDDING AND AUTHORIZE 

PURCHASE OF METRO CONNECTIONS FOR A COMMUNICATIONS TOWER, 

THE PROPOSED NEW FIRE LOCATION (TOWER PARK), GUEST NETWORK 

SERVICES LOCATED AT 300 S. CHURCH STREET AND THE CITY'S AIRPORT 

FACILITY FOR THE CITY OF JONESBORO

Sponsors: Information Systems

Quote City of Jonesboro Church Street 05 15 13

Quote City of Jonesboro Lindbergh 05 15 13

Quote City of Jonesboro Neely 05 15 13

Quote City of Jonesboro Strawfloor 05 15 13

Attachments:

Mayor Perrin noted this is a standard agreement. 

Councilman Fears explained he discussed this project with Information Systems 

Director Erick Woodruff and he agrees with everything Mr. Woodruff wants to do.  

Councilman Dover asked if this needs to be placed on tonight’s Council agenda . 

Chairwoman Williams answered yes.

A motion was made by Councilman Mikel Fears, seconded by Councilman 

Darrel Dover, that this matter be Recommended to Council . The motion 

PASSED by a unanimous vote

John Street;Darrel Dover;Mikel Fears and Charles ColemanAye: 4 - 

3.      Other Business

COM-13:044 Discussion concerning the MPO budget.

Page 1City of Jonesboro

http://jonesboro.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=7d904ae4-f59e-4923-a4bb-0406fa64956e.pdf
http://jonesboro.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=efd76fe7-45e6-4f58-8728-20c3ee959396.pdf
http://jonesboro.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=f1dc100f-b18b-4efe-bbc0-9523d6c89d3d.pdf
http://jonesboro.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=36cab25c-3135-4a8e-8172-d4dbf60368ea.pdf


June 18, 2013Finance & Administration Council 

Committee

Meeting Minutes - Draft

Funding information

Unified Planning Work Program information

Attachments:

Dr. Marsha Guffey discussed the Metropolitan Planning Organization 2013-2014 

budget, which begins on July 1, 2013, and ends on June 30, 2014. She explained the 

MPO’s budget will be $277,000 for this year and the City’s match will be larger than 

previous years. She noted MPO will use the money for some surveys and for the 

Long Range Transportation Plan, which happens every 4 to 5 years.

Discussion was held concerning what projects MPO would like to do. 

Dr. Guffey explained the Policy Committee has approved a raise for Mr. Travis 

Brooks. She added she would like to increase Mr. Brooks’ hourly rate to that of the 

Planner I position.

Councilman Coleman asked how the survey the MPO wants to do would be 

conducted. Dr. Guffey answered they would do a telephone survey. Councilman 

Coleman noted sometimes the surveys leave out a vast majority of people. Dr. 

Guffey stated the survey would be a random number dialing survey which would 

have a greater success of contacting someone. She noted she would like to use 

UALR to do the survey because they have a great success rate with contacting 

people. She added  UALR may recommend doing a paper survey. 

Mayor Perrin noted the ward meetings have been postponed until September due to 

the move from the old City Hall.

Councilman Coleman discussed issues he has with surveys. Mayor Perrin noted the 

City can put surveys on the City’s website.

This item was Read.

4.      Public Comments

5.      Adjournment

A motion was made by Councilman Mikel Fears, seconded by Councilman 

Darrel Dover,  that this meeting be Adjourned.  The motion CARRIED by a Voice 

Vote.

John Street;Darrel Dover;Mikel Fears and Charles ColemanAye: 4 - 

Page 2City of Jonesboro

http://jonesboro.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=fae48820-69fa-4738-86fa-e76d12bda5ca.pdf
http://jonesboro.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=1358d16d-d4ac-4703-93ef-1dd075c55c6c.pdf


300 S. Church Street
Jonesboro, AR 72401City of Jonesboro

Legislation Details (With Text)

File #:  Version: 1RES-13:087 Name: Tax back program for Camfil APC

Status:Type: Resolution To Be Introduced

File created: In control:6/10/2013 Finance & Administration Council Committee

On agenda: Final action:

Title: RESOLUTION BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF JONESBORO, ARKANSAS CERTIFYING
LOCAL GOVERNMENT ENDORSEMENT OF BUSINESS TO PARTICIPATE IN THE TAX BACK
PROGRAM (AS AUTHORIZED BY SECTION 15-4-2706(d) OF THE CONSOLIDATED INCENTIVE
ACT OF 2003).

Sponsors: Mayor's Office

Indexes: Tax Back Program

Code sections:

Attachments:

Action ByDate Action ResultVer.

Title
RESOLUTION BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF JONESBORO, ARKANSAS CERTIFYING
LOCAL GOVERNMENT ENDORSEMENT OF BUSINESS TO PARTICIPATE IN THE TAX BACK
PROGRAM (AS AUTHORIZED BY SECTION 15-4-2706(d) OF THE CONSOLIDATED INCENTIVE ACT
OF 2003).
Body
WHEREAS, in order to be considered for participation in the Tax Back Program, the local government must
endorse a business to participate in the Tax Back Program; and

WHEREAS, the local government must authorize the refund of local sales and use tax as provided in the
Consolidated Incentive Act of 2003; and

WHEREAS, said endorsement must be made on specific form available from the Arkansas Economic
Development Commission; and

WHEREAS, Camfil APC located at 3505 S. Airport Road, Jonesboro, Arkansas, has sought to participate in the
program and more specifically has requested benefits accruing from adding New Construction to the specific
facility; and

WHEREAS, Camfil APC, has agreed to furnish the local government all necessary information for compliance.

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF JONESBORO, ARKANSAS, THAT:

Section 1: Camfil APC, be endorsed by the City Council of Jonesboro, Arkansas for benefits from the sales &
use tax refunds as provided by Section 15-4-2706(d) of the Consolidated Incentive Act of 2003.

Section 2: The Department of Finance and Administration is authorized to refund local sales and use tax to
Camfil APC.



File #: RES-13:087, Version: 1

Section 3: This resolution shall take effect immediately.


	legistar.com
	Meeting Agenda
	Legislation Details (With Text) - MIN-13:043
	MIN-13:043 - Minutes
	Legislation Details (With Text) - MIN-13:049
	MIN-13:049 - Minutes
	Legislation Details (With Text) - RES-13:087


